

TRIBHUVAN UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE OF ENGINEERING PULCHOWK CAMPUS

THESIS NO.: M-122-MSTIM-2020-2022

Analyzing the Adoption of Online Shopping Using Extended Technology Acceptance Model: An Empirical Study on Five Districts of Nepal

by

Bivek Gaire

A THESIS

SUBMITTED TO DEPARTMENT OF MECHANICAL AND AEROSPACE ENGINEERING IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF MASTER OF SCIENCE IN ENGINEERING IN TECHNOLOGY AND INNOVATION MANAGEMENT

DEPARTMENT OF MECHANICAL AND AEROSPACE ENGINEERING LALITPUR, NEPAL

SEPTEMBER, 2022

COPYRIGHT

The author has agreed that the library, Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering, Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering may make this thesis freely available for inspection. Moreover, the author has agreed that permission for extensive copying of this thesis for scholarly purpose may be granted by the professor(s) who supervised the work recorded herein or, in their absence, by the Head of the Department wherein the thesis was done. It is understood that the recognition will be given to the author of this thesis and to the Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering, Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering in any use of the material of this thesis. Copying or publication or the other use of this thesis for financial gain without approval of the Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering, Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering and author's written permission is prohibited.

Request for permission to copy or to make any other use of the material in this thesis in whole or in part should be addressed to:

Head,

Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering Lalitpur, Nepal

TRIBHUWAN UNIVERSITY

INSTITUTE OF ENGINEERING

PULCHOWK CAMPUS

DEPARTMENT OF MECHANICAL AND AEROSPACE ENGINEERING

The undersigned certify that they have read, and recommended to the Institute of Engineering for the acceptance, a thesis entitled "Analyzing the Adoption of Online Shopping Using Extended Technology Acceptance Model: An Empirical Study on Five Districts of Nepal" submitted by Bivek Gaire in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Science in Technology and Innovation Management.

Supervisor, Dr. Sanjeev Maharjan Assistant Professor Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering

External Examiner, Er. Niraj Tamrakar Senior Engineer Nepal Telecom

Committee Chairperson, Dr. Surya Prasad Adhikari Head Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering

Date: 15th September, 2022

ABSTRACT

Recently, in Nepal, penetration of the internet has increased making every internet user a potential buyer of growing online shopping trend but the question arises of what motivates the consumer to buy online and how it has been adopted currently. This research aims to analyze the perception of consumers of five districts of Nepal toward online shopping with Extended Technology Acceptance Model (TAM2) as framework for examining various factors that influence shopping online. Responses of 460 participants were recorded for this study. A quantitative research approach was used and the collected data were analyzed by CB-SEM method using SPSS and AMOS. The research result shows that perceived ease of use has positive influence on perceived usefulness; perceived enjoyment and perceived cost have significant positive influence on attitude toward online shopping whereas perceived risk has negative influence on it. Moreover, behaviour intention to shop online is positively influenced by perceived usefulness, subjective norms, and attitude toward online shopping. This research supports that when consumers enjoy online shopping and find products at the right cost then they are motivated to shop online whereas risks associated with online shopping demotivate it. And, people's behaviour to shop online is influenced by social influence, perceived usefulness, and attitude toward online shopping.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Firstly, I would like to express my deepest gratitude and appreciation to my supervisor as well as program coordinator Dr. Sanjeev Maharjan for his enthusiastic support, insightful suggestions, and valuable guidance throughout this research.

Secondly, I would like to gratefully thank Head of Department Dr. Surya Prasad Adhikari and all the faculty members of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering for their valuable suggestions and support.

Finally, I would like to thank all my classmate (MSTIM 076 batch) and my family members for being encouraging and understanding with their endless support. I would also like to express my thanks toward all the participants for their support in survey while gathering data.

COPYRIGHT	2
APPROVAL PAGE	
ABSTRACT	4
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	5
TABLE OF CONTENTS	6
LIST OF TABLES	9
LIST OF FIGURES	10
LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS	11
CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION	
1.1 Background	13
1.2 Problem and Research Purpose	14
1.3 Objectives	15
1.3.1 Main Objective	15
1.3.2 Specific Objectives	15
1.4 Limitation	15
CHAPTER TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW	
2.1 Online Shopping/E-Commerce	16
2.2 Consumer Behaviour	17
2.3 Consumer Behaviour in Online Shopping	17
2.4 History of Online Shopping in Nepal	
2.5 Technology Acceptance Theories	19
2.6 Technology Acceptance Model	19
2.7 Extended Technology Acceptance Model	
2.8 Structured Equation Modelling (SEM)	21
CHAPTER THREE: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

3.1 Research Framework	
3.1.1 Perceived Usefulness	24
3.1.2 Perceived Ease of Use	
3.1.3 Perceived Enjoyment	
3.1.4 Perceived Risk	
3.1.5 Perceived Cost	
3.1.6 Attitude Toward Online Shopping	
3.1.7 Subjective Norms	
3.2 Methodology of Research	
3.3 Study Area and Sample Size	
CHAPTER FOUR: RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	
4.1 Feasibility Analysis	
4.1.1 Demographic Data for the pilot study	
4.1.2 Previous Online Shopping Experience Data for the pilot st	tudy32
4.1.3 Reliability Test for pilot study data	
4.2 Demographic Information and Previous Shopping Experience	
4.2.1 The Demographic Data	
4.2.2 Pervious Shopping Experience	
4.3 Descriptive Statistics	
4.4 Measurement Model	
4.4.1 Measurement Model Fitness Test	
4.4.2 Reliability and Validity	
4.5 Structural Model	
4.5.1 Structural Model Fitness Test	
4.5.2 Predictive Relevance	
4.5.3 Hypothesis Testing	

4.6 Demographics and Previous Shopping Experience Influence	51
CHAPTER FIVE: CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	53
5.1 Conclusions	
5.2 Recommendations	53
REFERENCES	54
APPENDIX I: QUESTIONNAIRE FOR SURVEY	63
APPENDIX II: PLAGIARISM REPORT	68

LIST OF TABLES

Table 4.1: Demographic data of pilot study	31
Table 4.2: Previous online shopping experience data for pilot study	32
Table 4.3: Cronbach alpha of variables before removing outliner questions	34
Table 4.4: Item total statistics data	34
Table 4.5: Cronbach alpha of variables after removing outliner indicators	36
Table 4.6: Demographic data for final study	37
Table 4.7: Mean, factor loadings, s.d. of indicator and mean of construct	42
Table 4.8: Cut-off criteria of goodness of fit (GOF) indices measures by	
Hu and Bentler (1999)	44
Table 4.9: GOF indices measures of measurement model	44
Table 4.10: Reliability measures of measurement model	46
Table 4.11: Heterotrait-Monotrait (HTMT) ratio	.47
Table 4.12: GOF indices measures of structural model	48
Table 4.13: R ² of the endogenous variable	48
Table 4.14: Results of path analysis of structural model	50
Table 4.15: Demographics and previous shopping experience influence	
on attitude and behaviour intention to shop online	51

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 2.1: Technology Acceptance Model by Fred Davis and Richard Bagozzi	20
Figure 2.2: Extended Technology Acceptance Model	21
Figure 3.1: Research Model	23
Figure 3.2: Research Methodology	29
Figure 4.1: Previous Online Shopping Exposure	38
Figure 4.2: Online Shopping Duration	38
Figure 4.3: Platform Used for Online Shopping	39
Figure 4.4: Products Bought Online	39
Figure 4.5: Online Shopping Frequency	40
Figure 4.6: Online Store Used	41
Figure 4.7: Felt Being Cheated Previously	41
Figure 4.8: Measurement Model Constructed in AMOS	45
Figure 4.9: SEM Model Constructed in AMOS	49

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

AMOS	Analysis of a Moment Structure
ANOVA	Analysis of Variance
ATT	Attitude Toward Online Shopping
AVE	Average Variance Extracted
BI	Behavioural Intention
СВ	Covariance Based
CFA	Confirmatory Factor Analysis
CFI	Comparative Fit Index
CMIN	Chi-Square
COD	Cash on Delivery
COVID-19	Coronavirus Disease 2019
CR	Composite Reliability
DF	Degree of Freedom
GOF	Goodness of Fit
HTMT	Heterotrait - Monotrait
IBM	International Business Machine
IT	Information Technology
MAV	Maximum Allowable Variance
MNC	Multinational Company
NTA	Nepal Telecommunication Authority
PC	Perceived Cost
PE	Perceived Enjoyment
PEOU	Perceived Ease of Use
PR	Perceived Risk
PU	Perceived Usefulness

RSMEA	Root Mean Square Error of Approximation
SD	Standard Deviation
SEM	Structured Equation Modelling
SPSS	Statistical Package for Social Sciences
SRMR	Standardized Root Mean Square Residual
ТАМ	Technology Acceptance Model
TAM2	Extended Technology Acceptance Model
TRA	Theory of Reasoned Action

CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

In today's age of technological advancements, the internet has become an integral part of human's everyday activities which has significantly helped make online shopping the latest trend (Ofori and Appiah-Nimo, 2019). Online shopping has become the latest trend to satisfy own's needs over traditional shopping due to the shifting toward e-commerce caused by an increase in adequate technology (Preeti et al., 2016). Though customers cannot feel the product they are buying online but due to its convenience, online shopping is admired over traditional shopping all over the world because products that are not available in the traditional way can be easily accessed by online shopping and they also give many offers and discounts (Bajdor, 2021).

Online shopping has changed the process of doing business as it brings more competitive prices of a wide range of products with various offers making consumers more demanding and compelling companies come up with unique marketing strategies (Valarezo et al., 2018). Hackers who can steal personal information, 'privacy paradox', security software, quality of products, after-sale service, internet usability, etc. are the reason not to buy online (Fernández-Bonilla et al., 2022). Perception of online shopping changes over time due to the experience consumer acquired over that period (Fang et al., 2016; Bajdor, 2021). Customers use the Internet to research products, prices, and the customer service they receive when purchasing them, in addition to online purchases from specific retailers (Kochar and Kaur, 2018).

As of May 2021, the no. of internet users in Nepal is 27.3 million which is about 90.56 percent of the country's total population according to the Nepal Telecommunications Authority. With easy access and a reduction in the cost of technology-based goods and internet services, there is an upward trend in the popularity of online shopping among Nepalese consumers (Vaidya, 2019). Many Nepalese banks support online payment systems during online shopping helping it to be adopted easily by youths and educated people. In Nepal, the COVID-19 pandemic has also positively helped online shopping as offline stores became difficult to access. Though the online shopping market has started to unfold in Nepal however, due to the lack of any clear legal act, guidelines, and provisions there is very less existence of trust in online shopping from the Nepalese consumer point of view. On the other hand, businessmen and entrepreneurs are having

second thoughts about establishing and operating e-commerce businesses.

Online shopping is no longer a new concept in Nepal as a huge penetration of the internet has provided a large consumer for an online shopping business. Perceived value (e.g. cost, risk, quality, benefits, etc.) of a consumer is the primary factor that helps any online business to be adopted by the consumer (Wu et al., 2014). Demographic profiles, subjective norms, previous shopping experience, behavioural intention, etc. also impact the attitude of consumers toward online shopping. With this changing e-commerce market, online shopping customers have also evolved and their buying behaviour is also subjected to these phenomena. To get an insight into online shopping trends and help to expand the business in the future any online business should first understand the attitude of the consumer toward online shopping (Jain et al., 2014). The success of e-commerce does not only come from the business side but the consumer side as well (Nisar and Prabhakar, 2017). This research focuses on the TAM model which is best suited to study the adoption of online shopping on the basis of the perceived value of consumers.

1.2 Problem and Research Purpose

Due to quick developments in the IT industry, each online users become a potential consumer for the company trying to sell online thus increasing competition. Companies are trying to find out how consumers are adopting the online shopping process and what motivates them to buy online.

There is much research done to study the adoption process of online shopping and consumer buying behaviour regarding online shopping however the buying pattern of every demographic place is different and very few studies have been conducted to study the buying behaviour of consumers in online shopping in Nepal that is not adequate to define how online shopping has been adopted among Nepalese consumers.

The Internet has penetrated almost every corner of Nepal and e-commerce business is booming but the major concern of e-commerce business is increasing consumer purchasing and repurchasing behaviour.

Based on numerous past studies, there is a questionable issue of what encourages consumers to buy online. On the basis of the above problem, this research helps to identify and get insight into the perceived behaviour of consumers toward online shopping in regards to the Nepalese economy as well as explore the cause of attention of consumers toward online shopping in Nepal. This research will help companies to know what are the major motivation factors of consumers on selected districts and how they can boost their business by addressing those factors.

1.3 Objectives

1.3.1 Main Objective

The main objective of this research is to analyze the perception of consumers of five districts of Nepal toward online shopping and identify various factors that affect its acceptance using the Extended Technology Acceptance Model.

1.3.2 Specific Objectives

- To analyze the impact of demographic factors (gender, age, family income, education, and access to good internet service) on the online shopping behaviour of consumers of five districts of Nepal
- To analyze the influence of various perceived factors (perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, perceived enjoyment, perceived risk, and perceived cost) on the attitude toward online shopping based on consumers of five districts of Nepal.
- To analyze how subjective norms and previous online shopping experiences influence the behaviour intention in consumers of five districts of Nepal.

1.4 Limitation

The purposive sampling technique, used for collecting sample data for this study, limits the participation of individuals who are away from the researchers' focus. This lacks the sample to be highly representative. Moreover, the focuses were only on the individuals in five districts who have good knowledge of the internet and online shopping. Individuals' perceptions and behaviour who have not participated might be different from the targeted individuals.

CHAPTER TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Online Shopping/E-Commerce

E-commerce means buying, selling, and exchanging goods and services over a computer network or internet through which transactions or terms of sale are performed electronically. The use of the internet has revolutionized the way of buying and selling thus impacting every industry and resulting in an online presence for businesses to gain a competitive advantage over consumers that prefer to shop in a virtual marketplace (Nisar and Prabhakar, 2017). In today's time, online shopping has increased globally as trade and commerce have been transformed due to multichannel diversification (Johnson et al., 2001).

Online Shopping was invented by Michael Aldrich in 1979 which was followed by other companies like Netscape (1994), Pizza Hut(1994), Amazon (1995), eBay(1995), and many other American MNCs (Vaidya, 2019). With the rise in growth and speed of the internet over time online shopping became recognized globally. Companies are able to attract a larger audience due to easy connection with customers in remote places and at a lower price due to the reduction in overheads required for the management of inventory (Manandhar, 2021).

The development of technology in the digital era is very rapid and brings a change in all aspects of human life, one of which is online shopping/e-commerce. In 2021, e-commerce contributed about 19.6% of retail sales globally and is expected to rise to 24.5% by 2025 (Daniela Coppola, 2022). Due to the limitation of offline sales because of the COVID-19 pandemic e-commerce contributed approximately 4.938 trillion dollars globally by 2021 and is expected to reach a 7.391 trillion-dollar market by 2025 (eMarketer, 2022).

With the recent evolution of the internet and various emerging technologies like smartphones, laptops, online payment systems, auto-bots, machine learning, and artificial intelligence the online shopping market is in a phase of constant change. Younger people having higher education levels and a good financial situation in the family tend to use e-commerce often (Lim et al., 2016). Social media has also made shopping an entertaining and easy experience for consumers (Dang et al., 2020). Many small businesses are reaching consumers via social media like Facebook, Instagram, TikTok, etc. rather than websites and mobile apps.

2.2 Consumer Behaviour

"Consumer behaviour is the study of individuals, groups, or organizations and the processes they use to select, secure, and dispose of products, services, experiences, or ideas to satisfy needs and the impacts that these processes have on the consumer and society" (Kuester, 2012).

Although customer behaviour and decision-making are difficult to describe and are unexpected, they may be predicted by paying attention to past consumer experiences and introducing successful items to the market (Syamruddin et al., 2021). It is challenging to acknowledge and understand each customer's wants because everyone has a different need and desire for goods and services (Bashir, 2013).

2.3 Consumer Behaviour in Online Shopping

The E-commerce market is hugely influenced by customer buying behaviours and factors influencing this buying behaviour (Wen et al., 2011). The customer has become more demanding as e-commerce has made the price more competitive due to the wide variety of products, offers, and marketing strategies (Valarezo et al., 2018).

Consumer behaviour in E-commerce is mostly influenced by consumer perceptions like attitudes, lifestyle, personality, purchase decision process, post-purchase, culture, demographics, opinion leaders, motivation, income, enjoyment, skills, etc (Peighambari et al., 2016) and by other factors like website interface, website visibility, convenient time, payment security, privacy, websites credibility, reviews, education level, etc (Wang et al., 2008).

Consumers can easily access shopping in their free time and generally, the younger generation enjoys shopping online, and their excitement increases when given some discounts or gifts (Kamis and Ramlee, 2021).

Nearly 200 senior marketing managers participated in a survey, and results showed that the consumer satisfaction index is incredibly helpful in organizational management, evaluation and analysis (Statista, 2015). Therefore, the online shopping environment plays a vital role in engagement between business and their target customers.

Due to the experience a customer gains through time, the initial perspective that drives them to make their first online purchases may have a distinct effect on their later repurchasing decisions or behaviour (Gefen et al., 2003). Some of the buying behaviour include the price of the product, ease of use of websites/pages, online reviews, availability of the product in offline stores, delivery time, mode of payment, etc.

2.4 History of Online Shopping in Nepal

In the context of Nepal, the internet was first launched in 1993 and to the general public in 1995 with a dial-up internet connection system (Bhattarai and Maharjan, 2020). Online shopping was first introduced in 1998 by thamel.com and Nepal's first-ever online department was muchahouse.com (later changed to mucha.com) started by Amrit Tuladhar in April 2000 (Vaidya, 2019). Nepalese living abroad used to send gifts to their family and friends via these platforms as Nepal had poor internet services in those days.

Initially, Nepal faced a huge backlog in online shopping due to various barriers at the consumer level like economic barriers (unavailability of credit cards, low tele density, lack of purchasing power, and lack of electrical supply), socio-political barriers (inadequate legal protection for internet purchases) and cognitive barriers (lack of skill, lack of availability of local language website, lack of knowledge about e-commerce, lack of confidence in service providers) as well as barriers in a business level like the underdeveloped financial system, unavailability of ICT and other supporting infrastructures, high degree of risk aversion, lack of Data Encryption Standard laws, etc (Kshetri, 2007).

Gradually internet in Nepal became more accessible, people got the skill to operate computers, and awareness about e-commerce increased among Nepalese consumers thus, other companies like Foodmandu (2010), Sastodeal (2011), UG Bazar (2012), Daraz (2013) and many others joined the race of online shopping in Nepal. Most of the e-commerce platforms in Nepal are of the B2C type i.e. consumers buying goods or services from the business. E-commerce is mostly being adopted in Nepal by youths and educated people. Usually, payments are done via COD or banking system or e-wallets (Khalti, Fonepay, e-Sewa, etc) in online shopping making online shopping more convenient for Nepalese consumers. After the COVID-19 pandemic, online shopping in Nepal has shown an upward trend as the internet became a mandatory household needs and people got aware of online shopping due to restrictions to shop in offline retail stores (Koirala et al., 2021).

Nepal shows a promising online shopping trend as online portals are offering many discounts, offers, and competition through virtual advertising allowing Nepalese consumers to benefit from it. Online shopping is still in its early stage in Nepal as all parts

of Nepal could not benefit from it due to a lack of proper transportation facilities making delivery of goods difficult (Parajuli et al., 2021).

Daraz, though funded by foreign, is the most used online shopping site that has been used by Nepalese consumers for online shopping in recent years as it offers varieties of products like electronics, clothing, health and beauty products, automotive tools, groceries, etc. thus works as a bridge between sellers and potential buyers. Daraz is also working on technology and a plan of action to export Nepalese goods abroad.

Though online shopping has shown an acceleration in growth in Nepal there is still no law to govern e-commerce. The Consumer Protection Act (2018) attempts to protect customers' rights, interests, and concerns regarding the cost, quantity, purity, quality, and other aspects of the goods or services that are bought online. A draft bill on online shopping and e-commerce has been drafted by the Ministry of Industry, Commerce, and Suppliers to govern e-commerce in Nepal which has nine key provisions but it is still in a state of being reviewed and has not yet been passed by parliament.

2.5 Technology Acceptance Theories

Many theories and models have been proposed over the years to study the acceptance as well as utilization of technologies and explain the usage behavior of individuals toward such technologies like Theory of Reasoned Action (TRA), Theory of Planned Behaviour (TPB), Decomposed Theory of Planned Behaviour (DTPB), Technology Acceptance Model (TAM), Extended Technology Acceptance Model (TAM2), Combined TAM and TPB (C-TAM-TPB), Model of PC Utilization (MPCU), Innovation Diffusion Theory (IDT), The Motivational Model (MM) and Social Cognitive Theory (SCT) (Momani et al., 2017).

2.6 Technology Acceptance Model

A review of various literature related to online shopping shows that Technology Acceptance Model (Davis and Bagozzi, 1989) is best used to understand online shopping behaviour (Jain et al., 2014). Technology Acceptance Model, published in Davis doctoral thesis explains how people accept and adopt new technology (Singh et al., 2017). People form attitudes and intentions toward trying to learn to use the new technology before initiating efforts directed at using it.



Figure 2.1: Technology Acceptance Model by Fred Davis and Richard Bagozzi

Technology Acceptance Model (TAM) is a theory explaining users' perception of technology and is also used to identify factors contributing to technology acceptance (Tahar et al., 2020). TAM is an extension of TRA which evaluates individual acceptance that is measured by two measures: perceived ease of use and perceived usefulness via three aspects: adoption, validation, and extension (Momani et al., 2017). TAM alone cannot demonstrate the usage intention of the consumer in connection with cognitive behaviour and social influence so it must be utilized with care as it might not examine consumer usage patterns properly (Ofori and Appiah-Nimo, 2019).

TRA's subjective norms are not included in the TAM model and does not describe how consumer behaviour is influenced by expectancies (Ibrahim et al., 2016). So, TAM has many revisions most widely used ones are Extended Technology Acceptance Model (TAM2) and Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology (UTAUT).

2.7 Extended Technology Acceptance Model

TAM2 is an extension of TAM which uses social influence and cognitive instrumental processes to explain perceived ease of use and perceived usefulness. Cognitive instrumental processes include job relevance, result demonstrability, output quality, and perceived ease of use while social influence includes subjective norms, voluntaries, and image (Venkatesh and Davis, 2000). By adopting TRA and TPB models TAM2 uses subjective norms as additional factors that have correlation with perceived usefulness as well as intention to use (Momani et al., 2017).



Figure 2.2: Extended Technology Acceptance Model

Social Norms refer to the method through which one adopts another person's beliefs into their belief structure when they feel that an important referent believes one should utilize a system (Warshaw, 1980). TAM2 is used for the prediction of the user acceptance model to design a plan for improving the acceptance level of individuals toward technology which results in a good performance in non-mandatory and non-voluntary environments (Parammaeswari and Sarno, 2020).

TAM2 was developed for addressing TAM limitations which helps to explain in detail factors that influence perceived usefulness including other theoretical constructs where perceived usefulness was found to be significantly influenced by job (Kim and Crowston, 2011).

2.8 Structured Equation Modelling (SEM)

Structural Equation Modelling (SEM) is typically used when there is more than one dependent variable in the model so as for explaining several statistical correlations at once (Bhattarai and Maharjan, 2020). Other multivariate analytical processes like ANOVA, MAV, regression analysis, and factor analysis are inferior to SEM because validation of the model is done in SEM by the means of visualization of complex models and simultaneous combination of factor analysis, path analysis, and multiple regression (Maiyaki, 2012). CB-SEM and PLS-SEM are two of the most popularly used SEM

methods (Dash and Paul, 2021). For a sample size greater than 250 CB-SEM gives accurate and consistent parameters thus statistical power of CB-SEM for a sample size > 250 is better than that of PLS-SEM (Rigdon et al., 2017). CB-SEM helps to test the goodness of fit and hypothesis of the model.

CHAPTER THREE: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

This chapter addresses the selection of analytical methods to collect and evaluate data to test the model and hypothesis suggested. The detailed methodology used in this research which includes research design, research framework, research strategy, research process, sampling technique, tool creation, data collection techniques, and data analysis process is explained.

3.1 Research Framework

In many research to explain the acceptance of online shopping TAM2 have been used. This research is done with some changes in variables used in TAM2 as there are other variables too that affect the intention to shop online. Perceived Enjoyment and Perceived Risk are taken as third and fourth external variables which affect the intention to shop online (Jain et al., 2014). In this research, Perceived Cost (PC) is also taken as an external variable along with Perceived Usefulness (PU), Perceived Ease of Use (PEU), Perceived Enjoyment (PE), and Perceived Risk (PR). In addition to these, demographic profiles, subjective norms, and previous shopping experiences of consumers are taken as important factors.



Figure 3.1: Research Model

3.1.1 Perceived Usefulness

Perceived usefulness (PU), as per TAM, is the extent to which an individual thinks that utilizing a specific technology will improve his or her ability to accomplish their work (Jahangir and Begum, 2008). PU is the term used to describe how consumers feel about the results of their interactions with new technology (Davis et al., 1992). The level of confidence that the usage of technology will benefit people is characterized by perceived usefulness (Parammaeswari and Sarno, 2020).

Online businesses rely on their customers' ability to shop online. Customers must believe that online buying will increase their performance and efficiency, as well as have a beneficial impact on the overall purchasing process (Zhou et al., 2007). If the rational and affective components are at odds, the outcome of the continuing choice process is determined by the respective strengths of the two components. Consumers are more likely to purchase a product if its use is viewed as beneficial regardless of their dissatisfaction with its previous use (Bhattacherjee, 2001).

Several past studies have shown that PU has a major impact in adjudicating the adoption process of innovation like online shopping (Tan and Teo, 2000). Thus, the following hypotheses were formulated:

H1: Perceived Usefulness has a significantly positive influence on attitude toward online shopping.

H2: Perceived Usefulness has a significantly positive influence on behaviour intention toward online shopping.

3.1.2 Perceived Ease of Use

Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU) refers to how much an individual thinks that utilizing a certain system would be effortless from a physical or mental standpoint (Davis, 1985). Consumers' perception of any new product or service as superior to alternatives as well as not challenging to learn, comprehend and use refers to PEOU, which measures how innovative a product or service is viewed (Rogers, 1983).

Consumers are more likely to adopt simple, straightforward, and less complex technologies than more complicated ones for online shopping (Selamat et al., 2009). Consumer intend to adopt new technology like online shopping if the use of online

shopping is more than the effort it requires to use it and perceives it as useful (Preeti et al., 2016).

Online shopping is providing consumers with products and services that were not convenient in traditional shopping making it more useful to consumers' perceptions leading to a positive attitude toward online shopping (Uloko and Elijah, 2021). Thus, the following hypotheses were formulated:

H3: Perceived Ease of Use has a significantly positive influence on Perceived Usefulness.

H4: Perceived Ease of Use has a significantly positive influence on attitude toward online shopping.

3.1.3 Perceived Enjoyment

Hedonistic shoppers that engage in experimental purchasing habits look for knowledge as well as online shopping excitement, pleasure, joy, thrill, distraction, fancy, etc. and their hedonic values are mostly connected to the fun, thrill, and enjoyment of action, which are commonly acknowledged as important factors in consumer purchases (Monsuwé et al., 2004; Scarpi et al., 2014).

The term "perceived enjoyment" describes the idea that a person will feel sudden pleasure after using a platform or piece of technology. A user will be inspired to utilize a system or piece of technology if it excites them to use it (Preeti et al., 2016).

When shopping online via social media platform individual find it fun to use, provide entertainment, inspire creativity, ease users' stressed-out lives, provide a relaxing effect, help to avoid feeling bad and their level of satisfaction also increases (Kamis and Ramlee, 2021).

When a consumer is having fun and is happy or satisfied while purchasing online, he or she is more likely to order a similar purchase in near future (Ulaan et al., 2016). Consumers need to enjoy browsing various products online. Instead of satisfaction from completing an online buying job, enjoyment comes from the excitement and playfulness of the interaction which might be from bought product or the process involved in buying (Childers et al., 2001).

Perceived Enjoyment determines an important role as it is a motivating factor in online shopping and a crucial element to predict the adoption of any new and innovative technology like online shopping by consumers (Mandilas et al., 2013). Thus, the following hypothesis was formulated:

H5: Perceived Enjoyment has a significantly positive influence on attitude toward online shopping.

3.1.4 Perceived Risk

The perceived risk conceptualizes the behaviour of consumers entailing the risk in that decisions consumers make will have effects that they cannot predict with any degree of accuracy, and at least a portion of it is bound to be undesirable and unpleasant (Bauer, 1960). Only subjective risk is considered perceived whereas objective or actual world risk is not considered in perceived risk. The customer's point of view which shows they have to tolerate some losses to achieve certain goals is known as perceived risk (Jain et al., 2014).

One of the main driving factors of online shopping is perceived risk, that exerts a big influence on other elements including attitude toward online shopping, pleasure, trust, enjoyment, and repeat purchases thus acting as big challenges to the company running e-commerce business (Amirtha et al., 2021). A central element in behaviour of the customer, perceived risk is frequently employed to describe the perception of risk by the consumer as well as their risk mitigating strategies involving transactions. So, higher perceived risk means a low probability of buying or repurchasing by customers (Benazić et al., 2015).

Customers worry that their personal information may be compromised while purchasing online, which is a burden for online retail firms. As a result, the company must offer strong security and data privacy protection measures to win customers' trust (Miyazaki and Fernandez, 2001). Thus, the following hypothesis was formulated:

H6: Perceived risk has a significantly negative influence on attitude toward online shopping.

3.1.5 Perceived Cost

The unit cost (direct and indirect cost that are presumed as independent of each other) that a customer believes he/she would pay by engaging in a certain activity is known as the perceived cost of that particular activity. Consumer overheads like delivery cost, internet costs, etc. make the perceived cost different from the real costs involved to enable

a specific consumption (Neuburger, 1971). Perceived cost in online shopping includes eshopping value, information searching cost, moral hazard cost, and rewards (Benazić et al., 2015).

As to the complexity of e-commerce, customers find risk while shopping online, their overheads are increased and influence their attitude toward online shopping. Perceived Cost has a significant relation to perceived value and it directly influences the intention of consumers toward online shopping and their repurchase intention (Wu et al., 2014). Thus, the following hypothesis was formulated:

H7: Perceived Cost has a significantly positive influence on attitude toward online shopping.

3.1.6 Attitude Toward Online Shopping

An individual's attitude is their internal sensation that expresses whether they like or detest anything, such as a product or service which also depends on how many individual values the action or activity positively or negatively (Albarracín et al., 2001).

A generic phrase used to describe and identify certain conduct is an attitude for example, attraction, liking, and behavioural intention are concepts that may be summed up as attitudes and explain things like customer loyalty, brand insight, and perceptions about products (Fishbein and Ajzen, 1975).

Several research has proposed that attitudes are an individual's positive as well as negative judgments, sentiments, and propensities for action toward a certain thing or concept with time (Mbabazi, 2018). Attitude toward online shopping is influenced by various other factors like perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, perceived enjoyment, perceived risk, and perceived cost. Nepalese consumers were found to have a positive attitude toward shopping online with an increase in the rate of use of the internet (Parajuli et al., 2021). Thus, the following hypothesis was formulated:

H8: Attitude toward online shopping has a significantly positive influence on behaviour intention.

3.1.7 Subjective Norms

Subjective norms are the notion that a significant group or individual would acclaim and accept a specific action and the perceived social influence from another individual to act

in a specific way and the urge to agree with other people (friends, family, colleagues, etc.) opinions are what constitute subjective norms (Ham et al., 2015).

In the beginning period of any new technology when an individual does not have more knowledge, subjective norms play a vital role in the adoption of such technology (Taylor and Todd, 1995). Subjective norms are found to be having a significantly positive influence on individual intentional behaviour toward online shopping (Moshref Javadi et al., 2012). Thus, the following hypothesis was formulated:

H9: Subjective Norms have a significantly positive influence on behaviour intention.

3.2 Methodology of Research

This research used a quantitative survey study approach to analyze the perceived behaviour and acceptance of online shopping using TAM2 structure with the inclusion of some external variables. The processes involved in the research are shown in Figure 4. 50 survey questionnaire was developed in three parts: the first part containing 5 questions related to demographic data, the second part containing 7 questions related to the previous shopping experience, and the third part of questionnaire containing 38 questions that help to analyze the online shopping acceptance consisting of 8 constructs or latent variables PU, PEOU, PE, PR, PC, ATT, SN and BI of Extended TAM that is collected using 5-step Likert's scale. 5-step Likert consists of 5 categories of answers (5: "Strongly agree", 4: "Agree", 3: "Neutral", 2: "Disagree" and 1: "Strongly disagree"), ordered in the correct order.

The reliability analysis was done using Statistical Package of Social Science (SPSS) software (version 26.0) and after structured equation modeling (SEM) to measure validity, model fit, and hypothesis test was performed in Analysis of a Moment Structures (AMOS) software (version 26.0).



Figure 3.2: Research Methodology

3.3 Study Area and Sample Size

This research has been conducted in five districts of Nepal: Kathmandu, Bhaktapur, Lalitpur, Rupandehi, and Chitwan.

The research involves surveying randomly selected persons through purposive sampling techniques where the survey is done on random personnel from selected districts assuming the overall population of these districts have similar characteristics to the sample. The minimum sample size required for the study is calculated using equation 3.1.

$$Nmin = \frac{z^2 * p * (1-p) * N}{e^2 * (N-1) + z^2 * p * q}$$
.....Equation 3.1 (Cochran, 2017)

where,

N_{min} = minimum sample size
N = Population size
z = z-value
e = accepted level of error
p = 0.5

The confidence level is 95% for which the z-value is 1.96 and the accepted level of error is 5%. The population size is the total population of selected five districts i.e., 4,837,484 according to the Central Bureau of Statistics 2021. The minimum sample size is found to be 385.

For this study, a questionnaire was developed in Google Forms and distributed among various individuals using electronic mediums like messaging platforms, social media, and e-mail living in selected districts, and their responses were recorded in integrated Google Sheets.

CHAPTER FOUR: RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

This chapter consists of consumers' adoption of online shopping using descriptive data and analyzing various factors that affect the adoption of online shopping using Extended TAM. IBM SPSS Statistics v26.0 and IBM SPSS AMOS Graphics v26 were used for analyzing the data and carrying out Structural Equation Modelling (SEM). The data for the Likert Scale for all the indicators were coded as ("Strongly agree": 5, "Agree": 4, "Neutral": 3, "Disagree": 2, and "Strongly disagree": 1) except for PE_4 which was negatively-keyed items so reverse coding was done.

4.1 Feasibility Analysis

A pilot study among 50 individuals was conducted through google forms where the response of 39 individuals was recorded and analyzed to obtain the reliability test of the questionnaire.

4.1.1 Demographic Data for the pilot study

The demographic data of the pilot study conducted are shown in the table 4.1:

Characteristics	Answer	Frequency	Percentage (%)
	Under 18	4	10.3%
	18-24	8	20.5%
A go group	25-34	18	46.2%
Age group	35-45	6	15.4%
	Above 45	3	7.7%
Condon	Male	27	69.2%
Genuer	Female	12	30.8%
	Below 4 Lakhs	6	15.4%
Annual family income	4-7 lakhs	4	10.3%
	7-10 lakhs	9	23.1%
	10-15 lakhs	10	25.6%

Table 4.1: Demographic data of the pilot study

	Above 15 lakhs	10	25.6%
	SLC/SEE	1	2.6%
	+2/Diploma	11	28.2%
Education loval	Bachelor	16	41%
Education level	Masters	9	23.1%
	PhD.	1	2.6%
	Others	1	2.6%
	Yes	33	84.6%
internet	No	3	7.7%
	Maybe	3	7.7%
	Yes	36	92.3%
snopped online before	No	3	7.7%

4.1.2 Previous Online Shopping Experience Data for the pilot study

Out of 39 respondents, only 36 have done online shopping before so those 36 individuals' responses were taken for other studies. The various characteristics related to previous shopping experiences are shown in table 4.2.

Table 4.2: Previous online shopping experience data for the pilot study

Characteristics	Answer	Frequency	Percentage (%)
	Around 6 months	6	16.7%
	6 to 12 months	5	13.9%
Time done online shopping	1-2 years	9	25%
such hand	Above 2 years	16	44.4%
	Website	11	30.6%
Platform used to shop	Mobile App	18	50%
online	Social Media	7	19.4%

	Electronics	14	38.9%
	Clothing	11	30.6%
	Grocery	3	8.63%
Products usually bought online	Beauty Products	4	11.1%
~ought online	Others	4	11.1%
	Few times a week	4	11.1%
	Few times a month	7	19.4%
Online shoppingOnce at least a monthfrequencyOnly for special occasio		8	22.2%
		12	33.3%
	Few times a year	5	13.9%
	Daraz	23	63.9%
Mostly used online	Sastodeal	4	11.1%
store	Others	9	25%
	Yes	7	19.4%
Falt abaatad bafara	No	20	55.6%
r en cheateu belore	Do not Know	9	25%

4.1.3 Reliability Test for pilot study data

Cronbach alpha test was done using SPSS to find the Cronbach alpha of all the variables having a 5-point Likert's scale questionnaire. Cronbach's alpha value ranges from 0 to 1, near to 1 better and cronbach alpha evaluates the internal consistency of data (Brown, 2002). The Cronbach alpha value acceptable range are >0.9 excellent, 0.8-0.89 good, 0.7-0.79 acceptable, 0.6-0.69 questionable, 0.5-0.59 poor and <0.49 unacceptable (George and Mallery, 2010). Overall Cronbach's Alpha: 0.884 which is good. The result of the reliability test is shown in table 4.3.

Variables	Cronbach's Alpha	Remarks
Perceived Usefulness	0.750	Acceptable
Perceived Ease of Use	0.692	Questionable
Perceived Enjoyment	0.784	Acceptable
Perceived Risk	0.725	Acceptable
Perceived Cost	0.705	Acceptable
Attitude toward Online Shopping	0.724	Acceptable
Subjective Norms	0.747	Acceptable
Behaviour Intention	0.888	Good

Table 4.3: Cronbach alpha of variables before removing outliner questions

Table 4.4: Item total statistics data

Indicators	Scale Mean if Item Deleted	Scale Variance if Item Deleted	Corrected Item-Total Correlation	Cronbach's Alpha if Item Deleted
BI_1	76.69	151.190	0.518	0.879
BI_2	77.03	148.999	0.588	0.877
BI_3	76.94	149.311	0.615	0.877
PU_1	76.89	153.930	0.396	0.881
PU_2	77.08	151.507	0.578	0.878
PU_3	76.75	152.536	0.516	0.879
PU_4	77.17	151.114	0.505	0.879
PU_5	76.58	151.564	0.484	0.879
PEOU_1	76.86	154.523	0.403	0.881
PEOU_3	76.67	148.229	0.588	0.877
PEOU_4	77.25	152.421	0.419	0.880
PEOU_5	77.14	156.237	0.280	0.883

PEOU_6	77.06	157.254	0.244	0.883
PE_1	76.81	150.847	0.511	0.879
PE_2	76.69	146.504	0.676	0.875
PE_3	77.06	152.054	0.561	0.878
PE_4	77.22	151.549	0.518	0.879
PR_1	77.06	159.425	0.126	0.885
PR_2	76.94	153.254	0.487	0.880
PR_3	76.94	153.311	0.335	0.882
PR_4	76.75	162.421	-0.060	0.889
PR_5	76.39	158.073	0.129	0.886
PR_6	76.11	159.587	0.065	0.888
PR_7	77.00	158.686	0.190	0.884
PR_8	77.00	155.714	0.277	0.883
PC_1	77.06	159.883	0.079	0.886
PC_2	77.00	154.114	0.432	0.880
PC_3	76.72	151.863	0.423	0.880
PC_4	77.50	160.257	0.102	0.885
PC_5	77.36	157.323	0.236	0.884
ATT_1	76.78	155.721	0.486	0.880
ATT_2	76.97	147.913	0.673	0.876
ATT_3	76.97	149.628	0.688	0.876
ATT_4	76.78	152.635	0.519	0.879
SN_1	76.31	148.904	0.429	0.881
SN_2	75.97	150.542	0.370	0.882
SN_3	76.50	157.629	0.164	0.885

After conducting the reliability test on all variables, we find cronbach alpha of all variables. PEOU has Cronbach alpha less than 0.7 which is not acceptable. So, on removing the question PEOU_6 we get a new Cronbach alpha value for PEOU i.e., 0.709 which is acceptable.

While analyzing we find PR_4 has negative inter-item co-relation with other questions so on removing PR_4 we find the Cronbach alpha of PR significantly increased i.e., 0.769.

Thus, after doing reliability test on the pilot study data, two questions (PEOU_6 and PR_4) have been found as outliner and removed for the final study to be conducted.

Variables	Cronbach's Alpha	Remarks
Perceived Usefulness	0.750	Acceptable
Perceived Ease of Use	0.709	Acceptable
Perceived Enjoyment	0.784	Acceptable
Perceived Risk	0.769	Acceptable
Perceived Cost	0.705	Acceptable
Attitude toward Online Shopping	0.724	Acceptable
Subjective Norms	0.747	Acceptable
Behaviour Intention	0.888	Good

Table 4.5: Cronbach alpha of variables after removing outliner indicators

The Overall Cronbach's alpha after removing PEOU_6 and PR_4 is 0.889 which is good and suggests that our questionnaires are reliable. Thus, the questionnaire after removing the two outliners is used for the final study.

4.2 Demographic Information and Previous Shopping Experience

The final study was conducted on data obtained from 460 respondents from five districts of the study area on google forms that were distributed to participants via social media, email, and instant messaging services.

4.2.1 The Demographic Data

The demographic data of respondents used in the final study is shown in Table 4.6.
Characteristics	Answer	Frequency	Percentage (%)
	Under 18	26	5.65
	18-24	102	22.17
Age group	25-34	234	50.87
	35-45	78	16.96
	Above 45	20	4.35
Condon	Male	284	61.74
Genuer	Female	176	38.26
	Below 4 Lakhs	72	15.65
	4-7 lakhs	103	22.39
Annual family income	7-10 lakhs	154	33.48
	10-15 lakhs	89	19.35
	Above 15 lakhs	42	9.13
	SLC/SEE	22	4.78
	+2/Diploma	60	13.04
Education loval	Bachelor	234	50.87
Education level	Masters	131	28.48
	PhD.	7	1.52
	Others	6	1.30
	Yes	430	93.48
Access to good	No	10	2.17
internet	Maybe	20	4.35

Table 4.6: - Demographic data for final study

4.2.2 Pervious Shopping Experience

As shown in figure 4.1, among all participants 92.83% (427) had previously shopped online whereas 33 (7.17%) had never shopped online. For the remaining analysis, the data of 427 respondents who had previously shopped online was used.



Figure 4.1: Previous Online Shopping Exposure

Figure 4.2 shows that most participants have done online shopping for more than 1 year that shows that consumers of these districts are well aware about online shopping.



Figure 4.2: Online Shopping Duration

As shown in figure 4.3 website, mobile application and social media are used frequently platform for online shopping.



Figure 4.3: Platform Used for Online Shopping



Figure 4.4: Products Bought Online

As shown in figure 4.4, consumers are more interested to buy electronics and clothing than other items. Beauty products is bought mostly by females (95.65%. Almost two third of respondents who shopped grocery were female. Consumers below 25 years age do not prefer buying grocery. Most of the participants (91.28%) those who shop electronics were male and preferred platform to buy electronics are mobile application and website.

Most of the respondents shop online few times a year or only on special occasion which shows that the penetration of online shopping in regards of frequency of online shopping is low and online business should take necessary actions to increase the shopping frequency. Among all respondents, almost two third of participants who shop on monthly basis has annual family income of above 7 lakhs.



Figure 4.5: Online Shopping Frequency

The result suggests that Daraz is the most used platform in selected districts and Sastodeal is mostly preferred for buying beauty products and grocery.



Figure 4.6: Online Store Used

As shown in figure 4.7, around 178 (41.7%) participants felt cheated while shopping online whereas 159 (37.2%) participants did not feel cheated while shopping online. 90 (21.1%) respondents did not know whether they were cheated or not during online shopping.



Figure 4.7: Felt Being Cheated Previously

4.3 Descriptive Statistics

Table 4.7 shows the mean, factor loadings, and standard deviation of the indicator and mean of the construct were computed in SPSS. Factor loadings show the correlation coefficient between items and their indicators. It was found that almost all the indicator means, standard deviation and factor loadings are in the tolerable range i.e. mean > 2.6, factor loadings >0.4 (Samuels, 2016; Yin et al., 2016; Nyutu et al., 2021).

Items	Indicator	Mean	Factor Loadings	Mean of Construct	SD
	PU_1	3.83	0.644		0.68
	PU_2	3.88	0.681		0.81
Perceived	PU_3	3.63	0.662	2 77	0.81
Usefulness	PU_4	3.93	0.575	3.77	0.79
	PU_5	3.60	0.65		0.80
	PEOU_1	3.76	0.706		0.68
	PEOU_2	3.53	0.742		0.92
Perceived	PEOU_3	3.45	0.683	2.72	0.88
Ease of Use	PEOU_4	3.99	0.551	3.73	0.77
	PEOU_5	3.93	0.526		0.75
	PE_1	3.75	0.701		0.75
	PE_2	3.70	0.678		0.88
Perceived Enjoyment	PE_3	3.90	0.766	3.79	0.78
Enjoyment	PE_4	3.81	0.63		0.85
	PR_1	4.00	0.449		0.60
	PR_2	4.13	0.556		0.64
	PR_3	3.94	0.593		0.78

Table 4.7: Mean, factor loadings, s.d. of indicator and mean of construct

Perceived	PR_5	3.57	0.694	3.87	0.92
Risk	PR_6	3.62	0.576		0.89
	PR_7	4.09	0.563		0.72
	PR_8	3.76	0.447		0.87
	PC_1	4.18	0.483		0.56
	PC_2	3.95	0.787		0.78
Perceived	PC_3	3.90	0.598	4 14	0.80
Cost	PC_4	4.27	0.508	4.14	0.68
	PC_5	4.40	0.486		0.69
	ATT_1	3.80	0.727		0.61
Attitude	ATT_2	3.88	0.713		0.67
Toward	ATT_3	3.83	0.59	3.81	0.72
Shopping	ATT_4	3.74	0.701		0.74
	SN_1	3.21	0.689		0.92
Subjective	SN_2	2.74	0.787	2 1 2	1.00
Norms	SN_3	3.43	0.645	5.15	1.01
	BI_1	3.82	0.725		0.65
Behaviour Intention	BI_2	3.86	0.759	2.02	0.80
monton	BI_3	3.82	0.762	3.83	0.79

4.4 Measurement Model

4.4.1 Measurement Model Fitness Test

The reliability and Validity of the model are tested in the measurement model. All the indicators and variables of the research model need to pass the reliability and validity test for the data to be allowed for further analysis of the model. CFA was performed to examine how effectively the indicators measure the unobserved constructs and determine if constructs are different from each other. A measurement model was designed in AMOS

as shown in figure 4.8 with all the constructs covariates with each other for confirmatory factor analysis. The measurement model was analyzed to get a good model fit and the resulting Goodness of Fit (GOF) indices are shown in the table. The GOF indices of the model were interpreted as per new Cut-off criteria by Hu and Bentler (1999).

GOF Measures	Terrible	Acceptable	Excellent
CMIN/DF	> 5	> 3	> 1
CFI	<0.90	<0.95	>0.95
SRMR	>0.10	>0.08	<0.08
RMSEA	>0.08	>0.06	<0.06
PClose	<0.01	<0.05	>0.05

Table 4.8: Cut-off criteria of goodness of fit indices (GOF) by Hu and Bentler (1999)

Table 4.9: GOF indices measures of measurement model

GOF Measures	Threshold	Estimate	Remarks
CMIN	-	1065.654	
DF	-	553	
CMIN/DF	Between 1 and 3	1.927	Excellent
CFI	>0.9	0.902	Acceptable
SRMR	<0.08	0.056	Excellent
RMSESA	<0.06	0.047	Excellent
PClose	>0.05	0.905	Excellent

As the GOF indices values of the measurement are within acceptable range so the research data yielded a good fit meaning that the data collected represents population as a whole.



Figure 4.8: Measurement Model Constructed in AMOS

4.4.2 Reliability and Validity

Cronbach's Alpha and Composite Reliability was determined to access the reliability of the construct. The Cronbach's alpha and composite reliability above 0.70 is termed acceptable (Hair et al., 2010). Overall Cronbach Alpha is 0.901 which is in the excellent range. Cronbach's alpha was computed using SPSS and composite reliability using AMOS. The results of reliability are tabulated in Table 4.10.

Variables	Cronbach's Alpha	CR	Remarks
PU	PU 0.769		Acceptable
PEOU	PEOU 0.746		Acceptable
PE	PE 0.798		Acceptable
PR 0.740		0.758	Acceptable
РС	PC 0.723		Acceptable
ATT	0.786	0.779	Acceptable
SN	SN 0.747		Acceptable
BI	0.788	0.793	Acceptable

Table 4.10: Reliability measures of measurement model

The Average Variance Extracted (AVE) for all the constructs PU, PEOU, PE, PR, PC, ATT, SN and BI are 0.414, 0.419, 0.484, 0.313, 0.341, 0.469, 0.503 and 0.560 respectively. The convergent validity of the construct is acceptable if CR >0.6, model fit indices are acceptable and Cronbach alpha > 0.70 but AVE < 0.5 (Fornell and Larcker, 1981; Lam, 2012) and reliability could be measured only by CR as AVE is strict often (Malholtra and Dash, 2016). The factor loadings > 0.40 are set as threshold points for all the indicators and their loading with constructs. (Matsunaga, 2010).

Discriminant Validity of construct is measured using Heterotrait-Monotrait (HTMT) Ratio, HTMT < 0.85 shows an establishment of strict discriminant validity between the constructs of the measurement model. HTMT is reliable and better as it demonstrates greater specificity as well as sensitivity rates than other discriminant validity measures like Fornell and Larcker, cross-loading results, etc. (Henseler, 2015). All the values in HTMT analysis are shown in Table 4.11 are below the threshold region so the model passes the discriminant validity test.

	PU	PEOU	PE	PR	PC	ATT	SN	BI
PU								
PEOU	0.766							
PE	0.682	0.760						
PR	0.191	0.205	0.265					
PC	0.505	0.592	0.591	0.437				
ATT	0.634	0.743	0.778	0.168	0.659			
SN	0.112	0.186	0.290	0.104	0.033	0.244		
BI	0.680	0.698	0.800	0.229	0.565	0.796	0.315	

Table 4.11 Heterotrait-Monotrait (HTMT) Ratio

4.5 Structural Model

4.5.1 Structural Model Fitness Test

The discrepancy or variance between the sample or observed and model-implied data is calculated using goodness of fit (GOF) indices. CMIN/DF, CFI, SRMR, RMSEA and PClose are considered for this research study as goodness of fit indices. AMOS was used to generate the structural model as shown in figure 4.9 and GOF indices were determined. Most of the GOF indices of the structural model were in the excellent zone of Hu and Bentler (1999) cutoff criteria except CFI which is very near to threshold level showing that the hypothetical model and sample data have an acceptable fit. The GOF indices measures are as shown in Table 4.12.

GOF Measures	Threshold	Estimate	Remarks
CMIN	-	1100.018	
DF -		565	
CMIN/DF Between 1 and 3		1.947	Excellent
CFI >0.9		0.898	Near Threshold
SRMR <0.08		0.064	Excellent
RMSESA <0.06		0.047	Excellent
PClose	>0.05	0.870	Excellent

Table 4.12 GOF indices measures of structural model

4.5.2 Predictive Relevance

The structural model predictive relevance is calculated by coefficient of determination i.e., R^2 of the endogenous latent variables and found as shown in Table 4.13. The R^2 was 0.637 for PU, which shows that 63.7% variance in PU is accounted for by PEOU. Similarly, the R^2 for ATT was 0.793 indicating that 79.3% variance in ATT is accounted for by PU, PEOU, PE, PC, and PR. And, R^2 of BI was 0.731 meaning PU, ATT, and SN account for 73.1% of the variance in BI. Thus, it is concluded that all the endogenous constructs have a good correlation with their exogenous constructs.

Table 4.13: R^2 of the endogenous variables

Construct	\mathbf{R}^2
Perceived Usefulness	0.637
Attitude Towards Online Shopping	0.793
Behavioural Intention	0.731



Figure 4.9: SEM Model Constructed in AMOS

4.5.3 Hypothesis Testing

Multiple regression techniques were used for testing the hypotheses using AMOS v26 and testing was done as one-tailed hypothesis testing. The null hypothesis is rejected and alternate or proposed hypothesis is supported when $\beta \neq 0$, p/2 < 0.05 and t value >1.657 (when β is negative, t value < -1.657) (Hair Jr. et al., 2017). The standardized path coefficient (β), t-value, p-value, and p/2 value obtained from AMOS along with decision remarks are shown in Table 4.14. Out of 9 Hypotheses, H1 and H4 were not supported, and the rest 7 hypotheses were supported.

н	Relationship	β	t-value	р	p/2	Remarks
H1	ATT < PU	.003	0.027	0.979	0.4895	Not Supported
H2	BI < PU	.245	3.528	< 0.001	<0.001	Supported***
Н3	PU < PEOU	.798	9.77	< 0.001	<0.001	Supported***
H4	ATT < PEOU	.196	1.208	0.227	0.1135	Not Supported
Н5	ATT < PE	.465	4.105	<0.001	<0.001	Supported***
H6	ATT < PR	136	-2.473	0.013	<0.0065	Supported**
H7	ATT < PC	.372	4.321	<0.001	<0.001	Supported***
H8	BI < ATT	.660	8.419	<0.001	< 0.001	Supported***
Н9	BI < SN	.172	3.771	< 0.001	< 0.001	Supported***

 Table 4.14: Results of path analysis of structural model

Note: significant at *p < 0.05; **p< 0.01; ***p <0.001

As per the finding of the research, perceived usefulness and perceived ease of use were found to have no statistical significance to attitude toward online shopping. However, it is found that perceived ease of use has a significantly positive influence on perceived usefulness, and perceived usefulness too has a significantly positive influence on behavior intention. Perceived Enjoyment and Perceived Cost were found to positively influence attitudes toward online shopping whereas the perceived risk was found to negatively influence attitudes toward online shopping. Additionally, attitudes toward online shopping and subjective norms have a significant positive influence on behaviour and intention to shop online.

4.6 Demographics and Previous Shopping Experience Influence

For the study of how demographics and previous shopping experience influence the attitude toward online shopping and behaviour intention average of ATT and BI is taken as a measure for each indicator. Relevant factors with a minimum of 20 responses from each group are considered for this study. Table 4.15 shows demographics and previous shopping experience influence on attitude and behaviour intention to shop online.

Particulars	Grouping	Average of ATT	Average of BI
	Under 18	4.05	4.08
	18-25	3.82	3.91
Age Group	25-34	3.80	3.78
	34-45	3.86	3.90
	Above 45	3.25	3.38
C l	Male	3.82	3.85
Gender	Female	3.80	3.81
		I	
	Below 4 lakhs	3.72	3.63
Annual	4-7 lakhs	3.77	3.77
Family	7-10 lakhs	3.83	3.83
Income	10-15 lakhs	3.88	3.88
	Above 15 lakhs	3.85	3.82

Table 4.15: Demographics and previous shopping experience influence on att	itude and
behaviour intention to shop online	

	Around 6 months	3.67	3.60
Online	6-12 months	3.82	3.76
Duration	1-2 years	3.78	3.83
	Above 2 years	3.85	3.89
	Yes	3.67	3.72
Felt Cheated	No	3.95	3.95
	Maybe	3.84	3.85

The study shows that the participants under 18 years of age have the best attitude and behaviour intention toward online shopping whereas participants above 45 years have the worst. Gender, as well as annual family income, shows no significant difference in attitude and behaviour intention toward online shopping.

Those who have shopped online for around 6 months have slightly lower attitudes and behaviour intentions toward online shopping than those who have shopped for more than 6 months. Additionally, participants who felt cheated previously during online shopping have lower attitudes and behaviour intentions toward online shopping than those who did not feel being cheated and who did not know whether they were being cheated or not.

CHAPTER FIVE: CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Conclusions

The study shows that consumers above 45 years of age have a slightly lower acceptance of online shopping than other age groups whereas on gender and annual family income basis the acceptance is almost similar.

The result from the extended technology acceptance model revealed that perceived cost and perceived enjoyment have a significantly positive influence on attitude toward online shopping, perceived usefulness and perceived ease of use have no significant influence on attitude toward online shopping whereas perceived risk has a significantly negative influence on attitude toward online shopping. This shows that acceptance of online shopping would increase if consumers enjoy online shopping and provided cost benefits in online shopping. Similarly, to increase acceptance of online shopping in Nepal risk associated factors related to online shopping need to be reduced.

Nepalese consumers who have started online shopping for around 6 months have slightly low adoption than those who have shopped for more than 6 months. Consumers who have felt cheated in their previous encounters with online shopping experiences tend to accept online shopping at a lower level than others who did not feel the same way. Nepalese consumers' intention to shop online is influenced by family, friends, and colleagues as well as their attitude toward online shopping and the usefulness of online shopping.

5.2 Recommendations

This research may be broadened further to uncover other external variables affecting TAM in the context of online shopping as well as any other relevant fields. This research is basically conducted in five districts of Nepal and generalizes the finding for the whole of Nepal by the means of the purposive sampling technique. So, to increase the likelihood that the results would be applicable to a wide range of situations, the future researcher should include participants from various areas.

REFERENCES

Albarracín, D., Fishbein, M., Johnson, B.T. and Muellerleile, P.A. (2001) "Theories of reasoned action and planned behavior as models of condom use: A meta-analysis", *Psychological Bulletin*, 127(1). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1037/0033-2909.127.1.142.

Amirtha, R., Sivakumar, V.J. and Hwang, Y. (2021) "Influence of perceived risk dimensions on e-shopping behavioural intention among women—a family life cycle stage perspective", *Journal of Theoretical and Applied Electronic Commerce Research*, 16(3), pp. 320–355. Available at: https://doi.org/10.3390/jtaer16030022.

Aref, M.M. and Okasha, A.E. (2020) "Evaluating the online shopping behavior among Egyptian college-educated community", *Review of Economics and Political Science*, 5(1), pp. 21–37. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1108/reps-10-2018-0013.

Bajdor, P. (2021) "Simulations of the relationship between the experience level of ecommerce customers and the adopted variables - Implications for management in the area of online shopping", *Procedia Computer Science*, 192, pp. 2576–2585. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.procs.2021.09.027.

Bashir, A. (2013) "Consumer Behavior towards online shopping of electronics in", *Theses Master*, pp. 1–60.

Bauer, R.A. (1960) "Consumer Behaviour as Risk Taking", in *Dynamic marketing for a changing world. Proceedings of the 43rd National Conference of the American Marketing Association, Chicago.*

Benazić, D., Dobrila, J., Tanković, A.Č., Econ, M. and Music, M. (2015) "Impact of Perceived Risk and Perceived Cost on Trust in the Online Shopping Websites and Customer Repurchase Intention", *24th CROMAR Congress*, (October 2015), pp. 103–122. Available at: https://www.researchgate.net/publication/301296426.

Bhattacherjee, A. (2001) "An empirical analysis of the antecedents of electronic commerce service continuance", *Decision Support Systems*, 32(2), pp. 201–214. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/S0167-9236(01)00111-7.

Bhattarai, S. and Maharjan, S. (2020) "Determining the Factors Affecting on Digital Learning Adoption among the Students in Kathmandu Valley: An Application of Technology Acceptance Model (TAM)", *International Journal of Engineering and*

Management Research, 10(03), pp. 131–141. Available at: https://doi.org/10.31033/ijemr.10.3.20.

Brown, J.D. (2002) "The Cronbach alpha reliability estimate", *Shiken: JALT Testing & Evaluation SIG Newsletter*, 6(1).

Childers, T.L., Carr, C.L., Peck, J. and Carson, S. (2001) "Hedonic and utilitarian motivations for online retail shopping behavior", *Journal of Retailing*, 77(4). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/S0022-4359(01)00056-2.

Cochran, W.G. (2017) 'Sampling Techniques third edition', Therapeutic Drug Monitoring and Toxicology by Liquid Chromatography.

Dang, V.T., Wang, J. and Vu, T.T. (2020) "An integrated model of the younger generation's online shopping behavior based on empirical evidence gathered from an emerging economy", *PLoS ONE*, 15(5). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0232213.

Daniela Coppola (2022) '*E-commerce as percentage of total retail sales worldwide from* 2015 to 2020, with forecasts from 2021 to 2025', Statista. Available at: https://www.statista.com/statistics/534123/e-commerce-share-of-retail-salesworldwide/#:~:text=Internet sales have played an,of total global retail sales.

Dash, G. and Paul, J. (2021) "CB-SEM vs PLS-SEM methods for research in social sciences and technology forecasting", *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*, 173(July), p. 121092. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.techfore.2021.121092.

Davis, F.D. (1985) "A technology acceptance model for empirically testing new enduser information systems: Theory and results", *Management*, Ph.D. Available at: https://doi.org/oclc/56932490.

Davis, F.D., Bagozzi, R.P. and Warshaw, P.R. (1992) "Extrinsic and Intrinsic Motivation to Use Computers in the Workplace", *Journal of Applied Social Psychology*, 22(14). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1559-1816.1992.tb00945.x.

eMarketer (2022) '*Retail Ecommerce Sales Worldwide 2020-2025*', *eMarketer*. Available at: https://www.insiderintelligence.com/content/global-ecommerce-forecast-2022.

Fang, J., George, B., Shao, Y. and Wen, C. (2016) "Affective and cognitive factors influencing repeat buying in e-commerce", *Electronic Commerce Research and*

Applications, 19, pp. 44–55. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.elerap.2016.08.001.

Fernández-Bonilla, F., Gijón, C. and De la Vega, B. (2022) "E-commerce in Spain: Determining factors and the importance of the e-trust", *Telecommunications Policy*, 46(1). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.telpol.2021.102280.

Fishbein, M. and Ajzen, I. (1975) "Strategies of Change: Active Participation", *Belief, attitude, intention, and behavior: An introduction to theory and research* [Preprint].

Fornell, C. and Larcker, D.F. (1981) "Evaluating Structural Equation Models with Unobservable Variables and Measurement Error", *Journal of Marketing Research*, 18, pp. 39–50. Available at: http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.jmrt.2015.04.004.

Gefen, D., Karahanna, E. and Straub, D.W. (2003) "Trust and tam in online shopping: AN integrated model", *MIS Quarterly: Management Information Systems*, 27(1). Available at: https://doi.org/10.2307/30036519.

George, D. and Mallery, P. (2010) 'SPSS for Windows step by step. A simple study guide and reference (10. Baskı)', GEN, Boston, MA: Pearson Education, Inc.

Ha, N.T., Nguyen, T.L.H., Pham, T. Van and Nguyen, T.H.T. (2021) "Factors Influencing Online Shopping Intention: An Empirical Study in Vietnam", *Journal of Asian Finance, Economics and Business*, 8(3), pp. 1257–1266. Available at: https://doi.org/10.13106/jafeb.2021.vol8.no3.1257.

Hair, J.F., Black, W.C., Babin, B.J. and Anderson, R.E. (2010) "Multivariate DataAnalysis",Vectors[Preprint].Availableat:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpharm.2011.02.019.

Hair Jr., J.F., Matthews, L.M., Matthews, R.L. and Sarstedt, M. (2017) "PLS-SEM or CB-SEM: updated guidelines on which method to use", *International Journal of Multivariate Data Analysis*, 1(2), p. 107. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1504/ijmda.2017.10008574.

Ham, M., Jeger, M. and Ivković, A.F. (2015) "The role of subjective norms in forming the intention to purchase green food", *Economic Research-Ekonomska Istrazivanja*, 28(1). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1080/1331677X.2015.1083875.

Henseler, J. (2015) 'Discriminant Validity: Check Out How To Use The New HTMT Criterion!', A Primer on Partial Least Squares Structural Equation Modeling (PLS-SEM).

Ibrahim, R., Hilles, S.M.S., Adam, S.M., Jamous, M.M. and Yafooz, W.M.S. (2016) "Theoretical framework formation for e-government services evaluation: Case study of Federal Republic of Nigeria", *Indian Journal of Science and Technology*, 9(37). Available at: https://doi.org/10.17485/ijst/2016/v9i37/94575.

Jahangir, N. and Begum, N. (2008) "The role of perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, security and privacy, and customer attitude to engender customer adaptation in the context of electronic banking", *African Journal of Business Management*, 2(1), pp. 32–40.

Jain, M.D., Goswami, M.S. and Bhutani, M.S. (2014) "Consumer Behavior towards Online Shopping: An Empirical Study from Delhi", *IOSR Journal of Business and Management*, 16(9), pp. 65–72. Available at: https://doi.org/10.9790/487x-16946572.

Järveläinen, J. (2006) "Perceived Usefulness and Ease-Of-Use Items in B2C Electronic Commerce", *Building the E-Service Society*, pp. 475–489. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1007/1-4020-8155-3_26.

Johnson, M.D., Gustafsson, A., Andreassen, T.W., Lervik, L. and Cha, J. (2001) "The evolution and future of national customer satisfaction index models", *Journal of Economic Psychology*, 22(2). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/S0167-4870(01)00030-7.

Kamis, F.F. and Ramlee, S.I.F. (2021) "Perceived Enjoyment in Online Shopping Via Social Media Among Generation-Y", *International Journal of Entrepreneurship and Management Practices*, 4(13), pp. 34–40. Available at: https://doi.org/10.35631/ijemp.413003.

Kim, Y. and Crowston, K. (2011) "Technology adoption and use theory review for studying scientists' continued use of cyber-infrastructure", *Proceedings of the ASIST Annual Meeting*, 48. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1002/meet.2011.14504801197.

Kochar, R. and Kaur, H. (2018) "A Review of Factors Affecting Consumer Behavior towards Online Shopping", *International Journal of Engineering and Management Research*, 8(4), pp. 54–58. Available at: https://doi.org/10.31033/ijemr.8.4.6.

Koirala, J., Acharya, S. and Rijal, N. (2021) "Is COVID-19 Reshaping Consumer Buying Behavior? Understanding the Problems and Issues of Online Purchase in Nepal", *SSRN Electronic Journal* [Preprint]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.3857578.

Kshetri, N. (2007) "Barriers to e-commerce and competitive business models in developing countries: A case study", *Electronic Commerce Research and Applications*, 6(4), pp. 443–452. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.elerap.2007.02.004.

Lam, L.W. (2012) "Impact of competitiveness on salespeople's commitment and performance", *Journal of Business Research*, 65(9). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2011.10.026.

Li, F. and Li, Y. (2011) "Usability evaluation of e-commerce on B2C websites in China", *Procedia Engineering*, 15, pp. 5299–5304. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.proeng.2011.08.982.

Lim, Y.J., Osman, A., Salahuddin, S.N., Romle, A.R. and Abdullah, S. (2016) "Factors Influencing Online Shopping Behavior: The Mediating Role of Purchase Intention", *Procedia Economics and Finance*, 35(October 2015), pp. 401–410. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/s2212-5671(16)00050-2.

Maiyaki, A.A. (2012) "Statistics for social science: structural equation modeling approach", *Elixir International Journal*, 49, pp. 9930–9934.

Malholtra, N.K. and Dash, S. (2016) '*Marketing Research: An Applied Approach Seventh Edition*', *Pearson India Education Services*.

Manandhar, R.B. (2021) "Online Shopping Behavior of Students in Kathmandu", *Nepal Journal of Multidisciplinary Research*, 4(4), pp. 33–44. Available at: https://doi.org/10.3126/njmr.v4i4.43142.

Mandilas, A., Karasavvoglou, A., Nikolaidis, M. and Tsourgiannis, L. (2013) "Predicting Consumer's Perceptions in On-line Shopping", *Procedia Technology*, 8. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.protcy.2013.11.056.

Matsunaga, M. (2010) "How To Factor-Analyze Your Data Right", *International Journal of Psychological Research*, 3(1), pp. 97–110.

Mbabazi, P. (2018) "Consumer Attitude, Subjective Norms, Perceived Behavioral Controls and Adoption of Online Shopping in Kampala City, Uganda", *Mubs-Ir* [Preprint], (October).

Miyazaki, A.D. and Fernandez, A. (2001) "Consumer perceptions of privacy and security risks for online shopping", *Journal of Consumer Affairs*, 35(1), pp. 27–44. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1745-6606.2001.tb00101.x.

Momani, A.M., Jamous, M.M. and Hilles, S.M.S. (2017) "Technology acceptance theories: Review and classification", *International Journal of Cyber Behavior*, *Psychology and Learning*, 7(2), pp. 1–14. Available at: https://doi.org/10.4018/IJCBPL.2017040101.

Monsuwé, T.P.Y., Dellaert, B.G.C. and De Ruyter, K. (2004) "What drives consumers to shop online? A literature review", *International Journal of Service Industry Management*, 15(1), pp. 102–121. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1108/09564230410523358.

Moshref Javadi, M.H., Rezaie Dolatabadi, H., Nourbakhsh, M., Poursaeedi, A. and Asadollahi, A. (2012) "An Analysis of Factors Affecting on Online Shopping Behavior of Consumers", *International Journal of Marketing Studies*, 4(5). Available at: https://doi.org/10.5539/ijms.v4n5p81.

Neuburger, H.L.I. (1971) "Perceived Costs", *Environment and Planning A: Economy and Space*, 3(4), pp. 369–376. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1068/a030369.

Nisar, T.M. and Prabhakar, G. (2017) "What factors determine e-satisfaction and consumer spending in e-commerce retailing?", *Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services*, 39. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jretconser.2017.07.010.

Nyutu, E.N., Cobern, W.W. and Pleasants, B.A.S. (2021) "Correlational study of student perceptions of their undergraduate laboratory environment with respect to gender and major", *International Journal of Education in Mathematics, Science and Technology*, 9(1), pp. 83–102. Available at: https://doi.org/10.46328/ijemst.1182.

Ofori, D. and Appiah-Nimo, C. (2019) "Determinants of online shopping among tertiary students in Ghana: An extended technology acceptance model", *Cogent Business and Management*, 6(1). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1080/23311975.2019.1644715.

Parajuli, S., Bijukshe, A., Devkota, N. and Bhandari, U. (2021) "Nepalese Customers" Attitude and Preferences towards Online Marketing: Index Based Analysis", 2(4), pp. 211–223.

Parammaeswari, R.P.I. and Sarno, R. (2020) "Analysis of E-Commerce (Bukalapak, Shopee, and Tokopedia) Acceptance Models Using TAM2 Method", (2000), pp. 505–510.

Peighambari, K., Sattari, S., Kordestani, A. and Oghazi, P. (2016) "Consumer Behavior

Research: A Synthesis of the Recent Literature'', *SAGE Open*, 6(2). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244016645638.

Preeti, S., Sarika, K., Shilpy, S. and Sukanya, S. (2016) "A Study of Adoption Behavior for Online Shopping: An Extension of Tam Model", *International Journal Adavances in Social Science and Humanities*, 4(7), pp. 11–22. Available at: http://ijassh.com/index.php/IJASSH/article/view/242%0Awww.ijassh.com.

Rigdon, E.E., Sarstedt, M. and Ringle, C.M. (2017) "On Comparing Results from CB-SEM and PLS-SEM: Five Perspectives and Five Recommendations", *Marketing ZFP*, 39(3). Available at: https://doi.org/10.15358/0344-1369-2017-3-4.

Samuels, P. (2016) "Advice on Exploratory Factor Analysis", *Centre for Academic Success, Birmingham City University*, (June), p. 2. Available at: http://bcu-test.eprints-hosting.org/6076/.

Scarpi, D., Pizzi, G. and Visentin, M. (2014) "Shopping for fun or shopping to buy: Is it different online and offline?", *Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services*, 21(3). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jretconser.2014.02.007.

Selamat, Z., Jaffar, N. and Boon, O.H. (2009) "Technology acceptance in Malaysian banking industry", *European Journal of Economics, Finance and Administrative Sciences*, (17), pp. 143–155.

Singh, N., Srivastava, S. and Sinha, N. (2017) "Consumer preference and satisfaction of M-wallets: a study on North Indian consumers", *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 35(6), pp. 944–965. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1108/IJBM-06-2016-0086.

Syamruddin, Putranto, I., Saputra, J. and Rialmi, Z. (2021) "A qualitative study of ecommerce growth during Corona virus disease (COVID-19) pandemic in Indonesia", in *Proceedings of the International Conference on Industrial Engineering and Operations Management*.

Tahar, A., Riyadh, H.A., Sofyani, H. and Purnomo, W.E. (2020) "Perceived ease of use, perceived usefulness, perceived security and intention to use e-filing: The role of technology readiness", *Journal of Asian Finance, Economics and Business*, 7(9), pp. 537–547. Available at: https://doi.org/10.13106/JAFEB.2020.VOL7.NO9.537.

Tan, M. and Teo, T.S.H. (2000) "Factors influencing the adoption of internet banking",

Journal of the Association for Information Systems, 1(1), pp. 1–42. Available at: https://doi.org/10.17705/1jais.00005.

Taylor, S. and Todd, P. (1995) "Assessing IT usage: The role of prior experience", *MIS Quarterly: Management Information Systems*, 19(4). Available at: https://doi.org/10.2307/249633.

Ulaan, R. V, Pangemanan, S.S. and Lambey, L. (2016) "THE EFFECT OF PERCEIVED ENJOYMENT ON INTENTION TO SHOP ONLINE (The Study of Faculty of Economics and Business Sam Ratulangi University Manado)", *Maret*, 4(1).

Uloko, A. and Elijah, O. (2021) "Digital Marketing and Consumer Buying Behaviour of Electronic Products in Nigeria", *www.ijbmm.com International Journal of Business Marketing and Management*, 6(3), pp. 2456–4559. Available at: www.ijbmm.com.

Vaidya, R. (2019) "Online Shopping in Nepal: Preferences and Problems", *Journal of Nepalese Business Studies*, 12(1), pp. 71–86. Available at: https://doi.org/10.3126/jnbs.v12i1.28184.

Valarezo, Á., Pérez-Amaral, T., Garín-Muñoz, T., Herguera García, I. and López, R. (2018) "Drivers and barriers to cross-border e-commerce: Evidence from Spanish individual behavior", *Telecommunications Policy*, 42(6). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.telpol.2018.03.006.

Venkatesh, V. and Davis, F.D. (2000) "Theoretical extension of the Technology Acceptance Model: Four longitudinal field studies", *Management Science*, 46(2), pp. 186–204. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1287/mnsc.46.2.186.11926.

Wang, N., Liu, D. and Cheng, J. (2008) "Study of the influencing factors of online shopping", *Proceedings of the 11th Joint Conference on Information Sciences (2008)*, 1, pp. 527–530. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1109/ITiME.2011.6130892.

Warshaw, P.R. (1980) "A New Model for Predicting Behavioral Intentions: An Alternative to Fishbein", *Journal of Marketing Research*, 17(2). Available at: https://doi.org/10.2307/3150927.

Wen, C., Prybutok, V.R. and Xu, C. (2011) "The Keep An integrated model for customer online repurchase intention AN INTEGRATED MODEL FOR CUSTOMER ONLINE REPURCHASE INTENTION", *Taylor & Francis* [Preprint], (January). Available at: http://doi.org/10.1080/08874417.2011.11645518

Wu, L.Y., Chen, K.Y., Chen, P.Y. and Cheng, S.L. (2014) "Perceived value, transaction cost, and repurchase-intention in online shopping: A relational exchange perspective", *Journal of Business Research*, 67(1), pp. 2768–2776. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2012.09.007.

Yin, T.S., Othman, A.R., Sulaiman, S., Mohamed-Ibrahim, M.I. and Razha-Rashid, M. (2016) "Application of mean and standard deviation in questionnaire surveys: Construct validation", *Jurnal Teknologi*, 78(6–4), pp. 99–105. Available at: https://doi.org/10.11113/jt.v78.8983.

Zhou, L., Dai, L. and Zhang, D. (2007) "ONLINE SHOPPING ACCEPTANCE MODEL-A CRITICAL SURVEY OF CONSUMER FACTORS IN ONLINE SHOPPING", *Journal of Electronic Commerce Research*, 8(1).

APPENDIX I: QUESTIONNAIRE FOR SURVEY

Section I: Demographic Information and Previous Shopping Experience

- 1. What is your age group?
 - a. Under 18
 - b. 18-24
 - c. 25-34
 - d. 34-45
 - e. Above 45
- 2. What is your gender?
 - a. Male
 - b. Female
 - c. Other
- 3. What is annual income of your family (in NPR)?
 - a. Below 4 lakhs
 - b. 4-7 lakhs
 - c. 7-10 lakhs
 - d. 10-15 lakhs
 - e. Above 15 lakhs
- 4. What is your education level?
 - a. SLC/SEE
 - b. +2/Diploma
 - c. Bachelor
 - d. Masters
 - e. PhD.
 - f. Others
- 5. Do you have access to good internet service?
 - a. Yes
 - b. No
 - c. Maybe
- 6. Have you shopped online before?
 - a. Yes
 - b. No

- 7. How long have you been online shopping?
 - a. Around 6 months
 - b. 6 to 12 months
 - c. 1-2 years
 - d. Above 2 years
- 8. Which platform do you use mostly to shop online?
 - a. Website
 - b. Mobile App
 - c. Social Media
 - d. Others
- 9. What kinds of product do you usually buy online?
 - a. Electronics
 - b. Clothing
 - c. Grocery
 - d. Beauty Products
 - e. Others
- 10. What is your online shopping frequency?
 - a. Few times a week
 - b. Few times a month
 - c. Once at least a month
 - d. Only for special occasion
 - e. Few times a year
- 11. Which of the following online store do you use mostly to buy products?
 - a. Daraz
 - b. Sastodeal
 - c. Others
- 12. Have you ever felt being cheated previously while shopping online?
 - a. Yes
 - b. No
 - c. Do not Know

Section II: Please select options indicating to which degree you agree or disagree with each of the following statements ranked in order 5: Strongly Agree, 4: Agree, 3: Neutral, 2: Agree, and 1: Strongly Disagree.

Variables	Items	Questions	References	
	PU_1	Getting to where I shop is hassle and online	(Moshref Javadi et al.,	
		shopping saves me from chaos of traffic.	2012)	
		Online shopping saves time required to	(Aref and	
	10_2	buy products.	Okasha, 2020)	
Perceived	Perceived Online shopping increases my productivity		(Jain et al.,	
Usefulness	PU_3	and efficiency while searching and	2014)	
(PU)		browsing products.		
	PI 1	Online store is always open so online		
	10_4	shopping can be done 24/7.	(Järveläinen,	
	PU_5	The advantages of online shopping	2006)	
		outweigh the disadvantages.		
	DEOU 1	Online ordering layout is easy and	(Jain et al.,	
		convenient.	2014)	
	PEOL 2	Detailed information of product is	(Aref and	
		available while shopping online.	Okasha, 2020)	
Perceived	PEOU 3	Online products have got users/experts		
Ease of Use	1200_5	reviews making it easy to decide		
(PFOLI)	PFOLI 4	There is no embarrassment if I don't buy	(Moshref	
(1200)		online.	Javadi et al.,	
	DEOL 5	I can take as much time as I want to decide	2012)	
	1200_5	in online shopping.		
	PEOU 6	Online shopping is more convenient due to	(Ha et al.,	
		COVID pandemic.	2021)	
	PE_1	I have fun while nurchasing products	(Moshref	
		online	Javadi et al.,	
		omme.	2012)	

Perceived	rceived I think buying online is enjoyable and		
Enjoyment PE_2 ple (PE) PE_3 I e sho		pleasure process.	
		I enjoy using new technology like online	
		shopping.	(Jain et al.,
	PE_4	I dislike online shopping.	2014)
Goods delivered in online shopping may PR_1 be damaged during transportation due to			
		mishandling.	
	PR 2	Quality of products purchased may not be	(Aref and
	1 K_2	good/guaranteed as needed.	Okasha, 2020)
	DD 2	There is risk of receiving products late in	
	rk_J	online shopping	
Dorooiyod	DD /	There are chances of being cheated in	(Jain et al.,
Dick (DD)	ГК_4	online shopping	2014)
KISK (F K)	DD 5	Home Delivery by a stranger may not be	
	FK_J	safe.	
PR_6 I feel that my personal information may be misused if I shop online.		I feel that my personal information may be	(Aref and
		Okasha, 2020)	
	DD 7	I cannot get to feel/test the product	(Moshref
	1 K_/	physically when I shop online	Javadi et al.,
If I shop online, I cannot wait till the		2012)	
	FK_0	product arrives.	
	DC 1	Product Price is important to me when I	(Li and Li,
	10_1	shop online.	2011)
	PC_2	Online shopping provides assy price	(Moshref
		comparison	Javadi et al.,
Dorooiyod		companson	2012)
Cost (PC)	PC 3	I like to check prices at different online and	(Li and Li,
COST (I C)	10_5	offline store before buying online.	2011)
	DC 4	I like different offers, discount and cash-	(Moshref
	10_4	back online shopping provides.	Javadi et al.,
	PC_5	I do not like to be charged for	2012)

	ለ ጥጥ 1	I think positively about using online	
	AII_I	shopping to buy products or services	(Aref and
Attitude		Online shopping is a positive tool to buy	Okasha, 2020)
Toward	AII_2	products or services	
Online		Using online shopping for buying products	
Shopping	ATT_3	or services is a wise idea	
(ATT)		Online shopping is worth to use in buying	
	ATT_4 products.		
		Most people who are important to me	
	SN_1	thinks I should use online shopping to buy	
Subjective		products or services.	
Norms SN_2 I feel under social press		I feel under social pressure to shop online	(Mbabazi,
(SN)	SN 2	My family member's/friend's opinion	2018)
SN_3 matters a lot to me in shopping online.			
	I intend to continue using online shopping		
	DI_I	to buy products or services.	
		I plan to use online shopping to buy	
Dehavioural	BI_2	products or services on a regular basis in	
Intention		the future.	
(RI)		Assuming I have access to online shopping	(Venkatesh and
	BI_3	for buying products or services, I intend to	Davis, 2000)
		adopt it.	

APPENDIX II: PLAGIARISM REPORT

Analyzing the Adoption of Online Shopping Using Extended Technology Acceptance Model: An Empirical Study on Five Districts of Nepal

ORIG	INALITY REPORT	
	4% ARITY INDEX	
PRIM	ARY SOURCES	
1	www.slideshare.net	108 words — 1%
2	www.researchgate.net	75 words — 1%
3	etd.uum.edu.my	60 words — 1%
4	hdl.handle.net	57 words — 1%
5	eprints.soton.ac.uk	53 words — 1%
6	www.mdpi.com	46 words — < 1%
7	core.ac.uk	$_{44 words} - < 1\%$
8	www.hindawi.com	37 words — < 1%

9	Kshetri, N "Barriers to e-commerce and competitive business models in developing countries: A case study", Electronic Commerce Re Applications, 200724 Crossref	31 words — <	1%
10	www.coursehero.com	26 words $-<$	1%
11	Paula Bajdor. "Simulations of the relationship between the experience level of e-commerce customers and the adopted variables - implication management in the area of online shopping", Pro Computer Science, 2021 Crossref	25 words — < ns for cedia	1%
12	etd.aau.edu.et	25 words — <	1%
13	Abhinav Srivastava, Park Thaichon. "What motivates consumers to be inline with online shopping?: a systematic literature review anddisc future research perspectives", Asia Pacific Journal and Logistics, 2022 Crossref	22 words — < ussion of of Marketing	1%
14	Wang, Chun-Chia. "Towards a Japanese Language Learning Process Based on Japanese Dubbing A Case Study on University Students", 2015 IEEE 15 International Conference on Advanced Learning T 2015. Crossref	21 words — < th Technologies,	1%
15	irgu.unigoa.ac.in	21 words — <	1%
16	search.bvsalud.org		

_	Internet	21 words $-<$	1%
17	www.ischool.utexas.edu	21 words — <	1%
18	ugspace.ug.edu.gh	20 words $-<$	1%
19	etd.fcla.edu Internet	19 words $-<$	1%
20	www.thefreelibrary.com	19 words $-<$	1%
21	docplayer.net	18 words $-$ <	1%
22	www.studymode.com	18 words $-<$	1%
23	Ines Brusch, Nina Rappel. "Exploring the acceptance of instant shopping – An empirical analysis of the determinants of user intention", Jo Retailing and Consumer Services, 2019 Crossref	17 words — <	1%
24	Said A. Salloum, Ahmad Qasim Mohammad Alhamad, Mostafa Al-Emran, Azza Abdel Monem, Khaled Shaalan. "Exploring Students' Acceptance Through the Development of a Comprehensive T Acceptance Model", IEEE Access, 2019 Crossref	17 words — < of E-Learning echnology	1%
25	ijhcs.com Internet	17 words $-$ <	1%

26	www.lifescied.org	17 words $-<$	1%
27	AVCILAR, Mutlu Yuksel, and Tufan OZSOY. "Determining the Effects of Perceived Utilitarian and Hedonic Value on Online Shopping Intentions International Journal of Marketing Studies, 2015. Crossref	16 words — <	1%
28	etheses.whiterose.ac.uk	16 words $-$ <	1%
29	www.igi-global.com	16 words $-<$	1%
30	meral.edu.mm	14 words $-$ <	1%
31	ujiapps.uji.es Internet	14 words $-$ <	1%
32	www.ijeijournal.com	14 words $-<$	1%
33	Kwangware, George. "Assessment of Participants Level of Interest in Accepting and Adopting Robotics Process Automation as a Technology To Finance and Insurance Sector: A Quantitative Cor Study.", Northcentral University, 2021 ProQuest	13 words — < ol in the relational	1%
34	Willoughby, Monica Claire. "Value Perceptions, Attitudinal Loyalty and Repurchase Intention Towards Luxury Motor Vehicles", University of Joh (South Africa), 2021 ProQuest	13 words — <	1%

35	jshippingandtrade.springeropen.com	13 words $-<$	1%	
36	www.research.manchester.ac.uk	12 words — <	1%	
37	Liuliang Yuan, Wei Liu. "The influence of contextual support on persistent sharing willingness of QQ group members", Online Inform 2017 Crossref	11 words — <	1%	
38	docshare.tips	11 words $-<$	1%	
39	eprints.utas.edu.au	11 words $-<$	1%	
40	mgesjournals.com	11 words $-<$	1%	
41	open.metu.edu.tr	11 words $-$ <	1%	
42	Girgin, M Taner. "Acceptance of Mobile Data Services, an Application of Technology Acceptance Theories", Marmara Universitesi (Tur ProQuest	10 words — < key), 2021	1%	
43	home.iitd.ac.in	10 words — <	1%	
44	next.owlapps.net	10 words — <	1%	
45	WWW.Cram.com	10 words — <	1%	
46	www.rsisinternational.org	10 words — <	<	1%
----	-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------------------------------------------------------	---	----
47	"Recent Advances in Intelligent Systems and Sma Applications", Springer Science and Business Media LLC, 2021 Crossref	^{rt} 9 words — <	<	1%
48	Abul Quasem Al-Amin, Angelina F. Ambrose, Muhammad Mehedi Masud, Mohammad Nurul Azam. "People purchase intention towards hydro, vehicles: An experiential enquiry in Malaysia", Inte Journal of Hydrogen Energy, 2016 Crossref	9 words — ^{<} gen fuel cell ernational	<	1%
49	Correia, Miguel. "Generation Y Behavioural Intention when Purchasing Male Apparel : the Influence of Mobile Application Usage", University Johannesburg (South Africa), 2021 ProQuest	9 words — ^{<} / of	<	1%
50	Management Research Review, Volume 34, Issue (2011-07-16) Publications	⁷ 9 words — <	<	1%
51	Pettiway, Tarina S "Learning Within and During It/Is Projects: Its Process, Antecedents, and Outcomes.", Case Western Reserve University, 20 ProQuest	9 words — < 20	<	1%
52	Timothy Teo. "A path analysis of pre-service teachers' attitudes to computer use: applying and extending the technology acceptance model in an context", Interactive Learning Environments, 2010 Crossref	9 words — < educational	<	1%
53	digiresearch.vut.ac.za			

	Internet	9 words $-<$	1	%
54	libwri.nhu.edu.tw:8081 Internet	9 words — <	1	%
55	open.uct.ac.za	9 words $-<$	1	%
56	"Encyclopedia of Education and Information Technologies", Springer Science and Business Media LLC, 2020 Crossref	8 words — <	1	%
57	Bolton, Kimberley Jane. "Marketing Implications of Self-Service Technologies Amongst Online Banking Customers", University of Johannesburg (South Afr ProQuest	8 words — < ica), 2021	1	%
58	Journal of Systems and Information Technology, Volume 15, Issue 2 (2013-05-27) Publications	8 words — <	1	%
59	Peng, Runhua, Li Xiong, and Zhenqing Yang. "An empirical study of service quality and tourist loyalty in the tourism mobile commerce", 2011 Inte Conference on E-Business and E-Government (ICEE Crossref	8 words — < ernational E), 2011.	1	%
60	Pi, Shih-Ming, and Jirapa Sangruang. "The Perceived Risks of Online Shopping in Taiwan", Social Behavior and Personality An International Jo Crossref	8 words — < urnal, 2011.	1	%
61	Saeed Alzahrani, Tuğrul Daim. "Chapter 4 The Adoption and Use of Tethered Electronic Personal Health Records for Health Management", Springer Business Media LLC, 2019	8 words — < Science and	1	%

	Crossref		
62	engagedscholarship.csuohio.edu	8 words — <	1%
63	erepository.uonbi.ac.ke:8080	8 words — <	1%
64	pure.manchester.ac.uk	8 words — <	1%
65	studentsrepo.um.edu.my	8 words — <	1%
66	surface.syr.edu	8 words — <	1%
67	Alaa M. Momani, Mamoun M. Jamous, Shadi M S Hilles. "chapter 1 Technology Acceptance Theories", IGI Global, 2018 Crossref	7 words — <	1%
68	Alfie Chacko Punnoose. "Determinants of Intention to Use eLearning Based on the Technology Acceptance Model", Journal of Information Techno Education: Research, 2012 Crossref	ⁿ 7 words — < logy	1%
69	Khushbu Madan, Rajan Yadav. "Understanding and predicting antecedents of mobile shopping adoption", Asia Pacific Journal of Marketing and Lo ^{Crossref}	^d 7 words — <	1%
70	Lee, Edward M "Is the Usage of Wearable Devices Worth It? A Study of Perceived Risks and Fashion on Intention to Adopt Wearable Devices", The Univ North Carolina at Charlotte, 2021 ProQuest	⁵ 7 words — < versity of	1%

	Crossref		
62	engagedscholarship.csuohio.edu	8 words — <	1%
63	erepository.uonbi.ac.ke:8080	8 words — <	1%
64	pure.manchester.ac.uk	8 words — <	1%
65	studentsrepo.um.edu.my	8 words — <	1%
66	surface.syr.edu	8 words — <	1%
67	Alaa M. Momani, Mamoun M. Jamous, Shadi M S Hilles. "chapter 1 Technology Acceptance Theories", IGI Global, 2018 Crossref	7 words — <	1%
68	Alfie Chacko Punnoose. "Determinants of Intention to Use eLearning Based on the Technology Acceptance Model", Journal of Information Techno Education: Research, 2012 Crossref	ⁿ 7 words — < logy	1%
69	Khushbu Madan, Rajan Yadav. "Understanding and predicting antecedents of mobile shopping adoption", Asia Pacific Journal of Marketing and Lo ^{Crossref}	^d 7 words — <	1%
70	Lee, Edward M "Is the Usage of Wearable Devices Worth It? A Study of Perceived Risks and Fashion on Intention to Adopt Wearable Devices", The Univ North Carolina at Charlotte, 2021 ProQuest	⁵ 7 words — < versity of	1%

71	Lee-Andra Bruwer, Nkosivile Welcome Madinga, Nqobile Bundwini. "Smart shopping: the adoption of grocery shopping apps", British Food Journal, 20 Crossref	7 words — <	1%
72	Mariella Schembri, Philip Farrugia, Andrew J. Wodehouse, Hilary Grierson, Ahmed Kovacevic. "Influence of sketch types on distributed design ter CoDesign, 2015 Crossref	7 words — < am work",	1%
73	Yüksel, Seran. "Yaşli Tüketi Cilleri In Alişveri Ş Yöneli Imleri ve Online Satin Alma Ni İyeti Ini Planli Davraniş Teori Isi Kapsaminda İncelenmesi University (Turkey), 2022 ProQuest	7 words — <]", Anadolu	1%
74	Mohammed Hamakhan, Yadgar Taha. "The Moderating Effects of Trust and Attitude on E- Banking Acceptance in the Kurdistan Region of Irac of Sulaimani Catchment Area", Hungarian Universi Agriculture and Life Sciences, 2021 ProQuest	6 words — < q: University ty of	1%
75	Sandra Soroa-Koury, Kenneth C.C. Yang. "Factors affecting consumers' responses to mobile advertising from a social norm theoretical perspec Telematics and Informatics, 2010 Crossref	6 words — < tive",	1%
76	Seock, Yoo-Kyoung. "Analysis of clothing websites for young customer retention based on a model of customer relationship management via the Interne 20111108 ProQuest	6 words — < et", Proquest,	1%
77	Thornley, Russell K "Understanding Process Improvement: Social Psychological Factors Affecting the Use of Project Management Practices.", Young University, 2020 ProQuest	words — < 1 Brigham	%